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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Juventus Estate Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Juventus Estate Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss {including
Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 2 summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements').

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
mannet so requited and give a true and fait view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the
Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, its loss and total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SA’s) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 12 to the Financial Statements of the Company which descrbes the
impairment of Inventory amounting to Rs. 21,920.97 lakhs during the financial vear. The Management get
the inventory valued and on the basis of the valuation reports, the carrying value of the inventory has
been taken as Rs. 22,523.90 lakhs and accordingly the Company has impaired the Inventory by an amount
of Rs. 21,920.97 lakhs. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditot's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Ditectors is responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the




financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is
obtained at the date of this auditor’s report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
tespect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a truc and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting ptinciples generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that wete operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting recotds, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also tesponsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditot’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, mndividually or in the
aggtregale, they could teasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or errot, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may nvolve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, ot the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are approptiate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(3) of the Act, we arc also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.




* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty cxists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Out conclusions ate based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
mannet that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may teasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Otrder”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure A”,
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Tncome,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directots as on 31 March 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
‘Annexure B’. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

L. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements as at 31 March 2023— Refer Note 48 to the financial statements.




ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including detivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023,

ifi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023.

1v. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no  funds
(which are material cithet individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whethet recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaties”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by ot on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and approptiate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

V. "The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year.

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

(h) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Repott in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company did not pay any remuneration to its ditectors during the year.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration N 80

005975N
New Delhj

Praveen Keshav
Partner

Membership No.: 535106
UDIN: : 23535106BGYUWS7592

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023, based on the audit procedures
petformed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Financial Statements of the Company
and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and
other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief,
we report that:

{1) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets:

(@ (A) The Company has maintained proper tecords showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b)  The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the year and no material discrepancies wete noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets.

(6 According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
vetification carried out by us the Company does not own any immovable property including
investment properties are held in the name of the Company. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i)(c) of the Ordet is not applicable to the Company.

(d)  The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during
the year.

(6)  According to the information, explanation and teptesentation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i1) (@  According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification cartied out by us, the management has conducted physical verification of
inventory at reasonable intetvals during the year and no material discrepancies between
physical inventory and book records were noticed on physical verification.

()  According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(i) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not made any investment in, granted any
loans, provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured and to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other pattics
during the vear.
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According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification catried out by us, the Company has not provided loans during year, however, the
closing balance of loans already granted is as follows:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Relation with Nature of Aggregate Balance
Borrower loan granted | Amount outstanding as at
granted /provide | balance sheet
d during date
the vear
gﬁ;ﬁjﬁ; SHO‘V Unsecured - 208,30

The Company has not made any investment in, granted any loans, provided any guarantee ot
security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured and to
companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. However,
the Company has granted loans in earlier yeats to a fellow subsidiary, (yeat-end balance Rs.
208.30 lakhs) at Nil interest rate which is lower than the market rate of interest. In respect of
such loans, we have not been provided with adequate explanation of the benefits, if any,
accruing to the Company for giving such loans, we ate unable to comment as to whether the
terms and conditions of grant of such loans are, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, in respect on loans granted, the schedule of repayment of
principal has been stipulated wherein the principal amounts are repayable on demand and
since the repayment of such loans has not been demanded, in our opinion, repayment of the
principal amount is regular.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification cartied out by us, thete is no overdue amount in tespect of loans granted to such
employees and company. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, no loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by the
Company which have fallen due during the year, have been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same parties. Accordingly,
clause 3(iii){e) of the Order is not applicable

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, which are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
tepayment, except the following instances:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Parties
Aggregate of loans/advances in
nature of loan
- Repayable on demand (A) 208.30 - 208.30
- Agreement does not specify
any terms ot petiod of - - -
repayment (B)
Total (A+B) 208.30 - 208.30
Percentage of loans/advances in - 100.00%
nature of loan to the total loans
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(%)

()

(b)
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According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and investments made, and
guarantees and security provided by it, as applicable.

According to the information, explanaton and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not accepted deposits or deemed deposits to
which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to
76 of the Act and the rules framed there under, are applicable. Accordingly, reporting under
para 3(v) is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained to us, the Central Government has not
specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in
respect of Company's products / services. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opmion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing uadisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident
fund, employees’ state Insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorites. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us , thete are no statutory dues referred to in subclause (a) above that have not
been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961(43) of 1961), that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or
borrowings and interest thereon payable to any banks and other lenders. The Company does
not have any borrowings from financial institutions or government.

According to the information and explanations given to us and written represcntation
received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly,
reporting under pata 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, we teport that no funds raised by the Company on short term basis
have been utilised for long term putposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.




(x)

(i)
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(xiv)
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(b)

()

(2)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(f) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, during the year, the Company has made private placement of
Compulsoty convertible debentures. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the requitements of section 42 and
section 62 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder with respect to the same. Further, the
amounts so raised have been utilized by the Company for the purposes for which these funds
were raised. During the yeat, the Company did not make preferential allotment of shares or
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
mformation and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any Instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures petformed by
us, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company duting the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related patties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act, whete applicable. Fusther, the details of such related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the
Companies Act 2013.

"The Company did not have an internal audit system for the petiod under audit. Accordingly,
clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance
with the provisions of section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the order are not
applicable to the Company.




(xvi)
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The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audir, the
Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not
applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs.191.74 lakhs in the current financial year 2022-
23 and Rs 349.03 lakhs cash losses during immediately preceding financial year.

Thete has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviif) of the Oxder is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, out knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncettainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not
capable of meeting its labilities extsting at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor amny
assurance that all Habilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company does not fulfill the
criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Cotporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause (xx) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Praveen Keshav
Partner
Membership No.: 535106

005975N
New Delhi

UDIN: : 23535106BGYUWS7592

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

With reference to the Annexure B referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 of even date.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repotting of Juventus Estate Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial repotting critetia established by the Company consideting the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICATI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and etrors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditots’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on out audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by the TCAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requitements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. QOur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testng and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropdate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance re:gardi.ng the Ie]iability of financial reporting and the p.teparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
tade only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inhetrent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, matetial misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the mternal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such intetnal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Nu

Praveen Keshav
Partner
Membership No.: 535106

UDIN: : 23535106BGYUWS7592

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023



JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED

All amount in & lakbs, unless otherwise stated

Balance Sheet as at

Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I. ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 6 25.53 57.50
(b) Other intangibe assets i = 4.23
(c) Financial assets
Investments 8 28.00 28.00
Other financial assets 9A 121.39 67.28
(d) Non-current Tax Assets, net 10 105.82 570.39
() Other non-current assets 11A 7.05 -
287.79 727.40
Current assets
(a) Inventorics 12 22,523.90 43,706.75
(b) Financial Assets
Trade receivables 13 - 210
Cash and cash equivalents 14 81.14 18.68
Other bank balances 15 742.91 1,235.21
Loans 16 208.30 208.30
Other financial assets 9B 11.18 6.46
(c) Other current asscts 11B 6.13 22.31
23,573.56 45,199.81
Total of Assets 23,861.35 45,927.21
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Hquity share capital 17A 9.80 9.80
(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 17B,C&D 25,525.20 14,525.20
(¢) Other equity 18 (26,838.62) (5,165.10)
(1,303.62) 9,369.90
Liabilities
Non-current liabilites
Provisions 19A - 33.78
- 33.78
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 24,209.94 32,329.45
Trade payables 21
~total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpriscs - 0.24
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprisesand small enterprises 15.97 1,759.53
Qther financial liabilities 22 41.51 86.08
(b) Other current liabilities 23 897.55 2,347.58
() Provisions 19B - 0.65
25,164.97 36,523.53
Total of Equity and Liabilities 23,861.35 45,927.21
Summary of significant accounting policies 5

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Q054 75N
New Delhi

Praveen Keshav

Partner
M. No.: 535106

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

L3

Prasant Kumar Dey
Director
[[DIN: 00349428]

5
N Zooy
Namrata Jain

Company Secretary

Mojnsedinl

Sandeep Muzumdar
Whole Time Director

Chief Financial Officer



JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED

All amount in & lakbs, unless otherwise stated

Statement of profit and loss for the Year ended 31 March
Note 2023 2022

Revenue
Other income 24 601.19 109.04
Total Revenue 601.19 109.04
Expenses
Cost of revenue 25

Cost incurred during the year 738.12 1,252:57

Increase in inventory (738.12) - (1,252.57) -
Employee benefits expense 26 103.67 119.12
Finance costs 27 8.58 2.15
Depreciation and amortisation expense 6&7 17.98 25.52
Impairment of Inventory 28 21,920.97 -
Other expenses 29 22252 346.64
Total Expense 22,273.72 493.43
Profit / (loss) before tax (21,672.53) (384.39)
Tax expense 30

Current tax (including carlier years) 0.99 -

Deferred tax charge/ (credit)

Profit / (Loss) after tax from continuing operations (21,673.52) (384.39)

Other comprehensive income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(@) Re-measurement gains /(losses) on defined benefit plans - (1.54)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -

Total other comprehensive income net of tax - 1.54

Total comprehensive income for the year (21,673.52) (385.93)

Earnings per equity share 31
Lquity share of par value  10/- cach
Basic (%) (22,107.04) (392.08)
Diluted (3) (22,107.04) (392.08)
Summary of significant accounting policics 5

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date

For Agarwal Prakash & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

005975N
New Delhi

<) W\m@y

Praveen Keshav Prasant Kumar Dey Sandeep Muzumdar
Partner Director Whole Time Director
M. No.: 535106 [DIN: 00349428] [DIN: 07709783]
3 <
Nt /”
Place: New Delhi Namrata Jain Akhila Nand Singh

Date: 25 May 2023 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer



JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED

All amonnt in & lakhbs, unless otherwise stated

Statement of Cash Flows for the

Year ended 31 March

2023 2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit / (loss) before tax for the year (21,672.53) (384.39)
Adjustments to reconcile net profit/ (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities
Interest expense on taxation 5 0.00
Depreciadon and amortisadon expense 17.98 25.52
Interest expense on borrowings 0.01 0.01
Interest income on fixed deposit (51.07) (58.57)
Balance Written Back (484.10)
Balance Written off 6.60 -
Loss on sale/ written off of PPE 20.34 618
Provision for impairment of inventory 21,920.97 -
Provision for gratuity and compenstaed absences 1.74 3.67
Operating loss before working capital changes and other adjustments (240.07) (407.58)
Change in operating assets and liablities
- (Increase)/ Decrease in inventores (738.12) (1,252.57)
- (Increase)/ Decrease in other current and other non-current assets 9.13 308.65
- (Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables - 29.96
- (Increase)/ Decrease in loans and other financial assets (4.72) -
- Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables (1,259.69) (27.48)
- Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial abilities, other liabilities and provisions (1,537.39) (352.12)
Cash used in operating activities (3,770.86) (1,701.14)
Income tax paid/(Refund) (463.58) (6.14)
Net cash used in operating activities (3,307.28) (1,707.28)
B. Cash flow from investing activities;
Purchase of Property, plant and cquipment - (1.39)
Inter-corporate borrowings given to others - 0.10)
Movement in fixed deposits 439.00 -
Interest received on fixed deposit 50.26 59.31
Net cash generated from investing activities 489.25 57.82
C. Cash flow from financing activities: (refre note no. 50
Issue of Compulsary convertible debentures 11,000.00 -
Interest on optionally convertible debentures - (0.01)
Proceeds from inter-corporate borrowings 21,317.14 2,786.62
Repayment of inter-corporate borrowings (35,436.65) (1,124.00)
Net cash generated from financing activities 2,880.49 1,662.61
D. Increase in cash and cash equivalents, net (A+B+C) 62.46 13.15
E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 18.68 5.53
F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+FE) 81.14 18.68
G. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents includes
Cash on hand - -
Balances with scheduled banks
- In current accounts 81.14 18.68
81.14 18.68

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date

For Agarwal Prakash & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration

N

Praveen Keshav
Partner
M. No.: 535106

Director

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023

Prasant Kumar Dey
[DIN: 00349428)
\

Namrata Jain
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SO

Sandeep Muzumdar
Whole Time Director
83 .

Akhila Nand Singh
Chief Financial Officer



JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity as at 31 March 2023

A Equity share capital*

All amount in & lakbs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars

Opening balance as at 01 April
2021

Issue of equity share capital
during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2022

Issue of equity share
capital during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Equity share capital

9.80

9.80

9.80

B Instruments entirely equity in nature - Optionally convertible debentures®s
Lol Openlng _un_um:%unupm atdl Apsil Movement during the year | Balance as at 31 March 2022 |[Movement during the year| Balance as at 31 March 2023
Optionally convertible debentures 10,968.93 = 10,968.93 7 10,968.93
C Instruments entirely equity in nature - Compulsory convertible debentures®**
Eirtivaiats Onening T&HMMM Hmm =01 dpsil Movement during the year | Balance as at 31 March 2022 |Movement during the year| Balance as at 31 March 2023
Compulsory convertible debentures 5 - - 11,000.00 11,000.00
D Instruments entirely equity in nature - Compulsory Convertible preference shares®**#%

Particulars

Opening balance as at 01 April
2021

Movement during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2022

Movement during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Compulsory convertible preference shares

3,556.27

3,556.27

3,556.27

(T'his space has been intentionally left blank)




JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity as at 31 March 2023

All amount in & lakbs, unless otherwise stated

Other Equity*****
Particulars Reserves and surplus

Other Oog.nonn:.n of Deferred ﬂ:ﬁ—omnn Retained Earnings Total

equity Compensation reserve

Opening Balance as at 01 April 2021 72.34 20.85 (4,872.37) (4,779.18)
Loss for the year - - (384.39) (384.39)
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans (net of tax) - - (1.54) (1.54)
Deferred Employee Compensation expense - - - -
Transfer to retained earnings on vesting of options - (14.06) 14.06 2
Balance as at 31 March 2022 72.34 6.79 (5,244.23) (5,165.10)
Loss for the year - - (21,673.52) (21,673.52)
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans {net of tax) - - - -
Transfer from retained carnings - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 72.34 6.79 (26,917.75) (26,838.62)

*Refer Note 174 for detatls
**Refer Note 17B for details
***Refer Note 17C for details
***%Refer Note 17D for details
wktt R ofer Note 18 for detatls

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.

Chartered Accountants

o
Praveen Keshav K‘
Partner
M. No.: 535106

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023

Prasant Kumar Dey
Director
[DIN: 00349428]

AN Spr,

Namrata Jain

Company Secretary

%
cax gﬂrnwy.

Sandeep Muzumdar
Whole YEHEN irector
[DIN: 07709783]

Alkhila Nand Singh
Chief Financial Officer




Juventus Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note - 1
Company Overview:
Juventus Eisate Limuted (“the Company™) was incorporated as Juventos 1
related and ancillary activity. The company is domiciled in India and its registered office s siated ar 1,1 L, Figst oo, East Patel nagar, New Delhi 110008,

state Private Limited on 25 July 2006 and is engaged in the business of reals estate and other

Note - 2

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read together with the Compames (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other rélevant
provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies for all the periods presented in these financial statements.

The financil statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorised and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 25-May-2023,
Note - 3

Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements

have been prepared on astorical eost basis except for cortain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measured ar Fair values as explained

m relevant accounting policics.

Note - 4
Current versus Non Current Classifications

The Company presents assets and babilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An assct as current when it 15

(i)- Expected 0 be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

(i1). [eld primanly for the purpose of trading

(ui). Lixpeeted to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(1v). Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from betng exchanged or used to setdle a habslity for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A habihty 15 current when ¢

(1)- Tt 1s expected to be serled in normal operating evele

(11). Tris held primanly for the purpose of trading

(). Tt s duc o be settled within twelve months afier the reporting penod, or

(). There is no wnconditional right 1o defer the settlement of Hability for at least twelve months after the reporting persod.
The Company classifics all other labilities as non-current.

Deferred rax assers and habihties are classified as non-current asscts and habilities.

The operating eyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisaton m cash and cash cquvalents. The Company has identified twelve months

as its operating cycle.

Note -5
Significant Accounting Policies:

a) Use of estimatcs and judgements:
In prepasing these Tnd AS financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabihues, mncome and expenses. Acrual results may differ from these estmates. Lstmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an

ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospeetively.

b) Revenue Recognition:
Revenue is recognised when control is transferred and is accounted net of rebate and taxes. The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to cach nature of the

revenue transacton as sct out of below:
Reveniee frove saie of propertics and develsped piats

Revenue from sale of propertics is recognised when the performance obligation are essentially complete and credit risks have been significandy climinated. The
Perfurmance obliganion are considered o be complete when control over the property has been trasferred 1o the buyer e offer for possession (possession request

lettes) of properties have been issue to customers and substantial sales consideration is received from the customers.

The Company considers the terms of the contract and 1ts customary husmess pracuces o determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of
comsaderanon to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring property to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third partics
(for example, indirect taxes). The consideration promused m a contract with a customer mav inchude fised conssderanon, vamble consideration (1f reversal 1s less likely
m future), or both,




Juventus Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

<)

d)

Por each performance obligaton identified, the Company determines at contract inception whether it satisfies the performance obligation over ume or satisfies the
performance obligation at a point in time. 1£ an enuity does not sausfy a performance obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in rime. A
receivable 1s recogmized by the Company when the properties are handed over as this is the case of point in time recognition where consideration is uncondiiomal
beeause only the passage of time is required.

When ather party 1 a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contrace in the balance sheet as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the entity's performance and the customer's payment.

The costs estimates are reviewed penodically and cffeet of any change i such estimate 18 ree ignized n the peniod such changes are deteemined. THowever, when the

total project cost is estimated to exeeed total revenues fiom the project, tHe loss 18 recognized immediately.

Revenne from sufe of land

Revenue from sale of land and plots 1s recognssed 1n the year in which the underlying sale deed is exceuted and there exists no uncertainty in the ultimate collécnon of

consideration from buyer.
Vervice Revenue

Income from real estate projects advisary services 18 recognized on acerual basis. Marketing and lease management income are accounted for when the underline
contracts are duly executed, on accrual basis when th s arc completed, exceptin cases where ultimate collection is considered doubtful,

Interest cnconse

Interest mcome is recorded on acerual basis using the effective interest rate (111R) method.

Interest on delayed recerpts, cancellanon/ forfeiture mcome and transfer fees from customess are recognized on accrual basis except in eases where ultimate collection
15 considered doubtful.

Cocin om aprartised cost fimancial assets

Gam on de-recognon of amortised cost financial assers s recognised m the year when the entire payment ss recewed agaust the outstandmg balance of amortsed cost financal assets,

Taxes on Income:

Current tax

Current Tax i determined at the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable profic for the year as per the Tncome-tax Act, 1961, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax” as reported 1n the financial statement of profit and loss because of frems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other vears and items that
are never mxable or deductible. The Entity's current tax 15 caleulated vsing tax rate that has been enacted by the end of the reporting pesiod.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax a5 recogmsed on temporary differences between the careying amounts of assees and labilities m the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used i the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax Habilities arc generally recognised for all axable wmporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally

recognised for all deducuble temporary differences to the extent that it s probable that taxable profits will be avadable against which those deductible Lemporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and labilites are not recogmsed if the emporary difference arises from the mital recognition (other than m a

business combination) of assets and labilitics in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrving amount of deferred rax assets i reviewed at the ead of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profits will be available to allow all or pagt of the asser to be recovered.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the rax ¢ msequences that would follow from the manner in which the Lntiry expects, ar the end of the
teporting pertod, 10 tecover or settle the carrving amount of its asscts and liabilities. Deferred tax habilitics and o ¢ts are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply m the pesiod in which the hability is sertled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the teporing period.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to stems that are recognised in other comprehensive income or direetly i equiry, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also rece ignised in other comprehensive income or direetly in cquity respectively.

Employee benefits

Short-term emplovee benefits

Short-term employee benefits comprise of cmplovee costs such as salaries, bonus cte. 1s rece igmized on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the period durig
which services arc rendered by the employee.

Defined contribution plans

The Company has a defined contribution plans mamely provident fund, pension fund, labour welfare fund and employees state msurance scheme. The contribution
made by the Company m respeet of these plans are charged to the statement of profit and loss,




Juventus Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policics and other cxplanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

)

g)

h)

Defined benefit plans

The Company has unfunded gratuiry as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will recerve on retrement is defined by reference 1 the employed’s
length of service and final salar
the reporting date. Management estmates the DBO annually with the assistance of mdependent actuaries. Actuaral gains/losses resultimg from e measurements of
the hability are mcluded i other comprehensive income.

- The hability recognised in the balance sheet for defined benefit plans as the present value of the defined benefit obligation (IDBO) at

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides the benefit of compensated absences o its emplovees which are m the nature of long-term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of
compensated absences becoming due and expected o availed after once vear from the Balance Sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed
Actuaral gans and losses arising from past experience and changes n

by an independent acruary using the projected unit eredit method as on the reporting date
s are determined.

actuarial assumptions are charged to statement of profit and loss m the year in which such gains or loss

Earnings per share

e 15 caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders: (after deducting attriburable taxes) by the
djpusted for

Basic carnmgs per sh

weighted average number of equity shares ourstanding during the pesiod. The weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the period is a
events including a bonus issuc. Partly paid-up cquity shares are tweated as a fraction of an cquity share to the extent they are enutled 1o partncipate m dividend relative
o a fully paid-up equity share duning the reporting period. Compulsory convertible debentures are teeated as cquivalent of equity share for the purpose of basic
carnings per cquity share. Treasury sharcs are adjusted for computation of weighted average equity shares.

Foreign currency

Functional and presentation currency

Ttems included m the sandalone financial statement of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary cconomsc environment m which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency’). The standalone fimancial statements have been prepared and presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign cursency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applving to the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the
date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are convered to funcrional currency usmyg the closing rate, Non

monctary stems denominared in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the dawe of the transacuon.

Lixchange differences arsing on monetary stems on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded,
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss m the vear n which they arise.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, der

wnd deposits and short-term highly hguid investments that are readhly convertible mto known amount of cash
d which are subject to an msignificant risk of changes m o value. For cash flow statement purposes, cash and cash cquivalents includes bank overdrafts that are

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Inventories
Land other than transferred to real estate project under development s value at Tower of cost or net relizable value.

Real estate project under development includes cost of land under development, internal and external cost, construction cost , and devdls pment. construction
matersal, borrowmg costs and related overhead costs and 1s valued at lower oF cost or net relizable value.

Netrehzable value 1s the esumated selling price 1n the ordmary couce of business less estrimated costs of completion and estimated costs of necessary to make the sale.




Juventus Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

i)

ky

m

—

Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment are mitally recogmised at cost. Cost comprases the purchase price and any directly attributable cost to bring the asset to 1ts working

condition for its mtended use. An stem of property, plant and cquipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no furure

ceonomic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (caleulated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) 1 meluded m the mcome statement when the asset is derecognised.

Assets Class Uscfule hife
Building- Temporary structure 1 years
Plant and Machineny 12 years
office equipment 5 years
computuers 3 vears
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Vehiele 8 years

The residual values, useful life and method of depriciation of are reviewed at the end of cach finaneial year.

Deprecianon on Property, plant and equipment is provided on steaight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11t the Companies Act, 2013, Assets
costmg less than Rs. 5000 cach are fully depreciated in the year of eapitalisation.

Intangible assets

ets with finite uscful lives that are acquired separately are carricd at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amornsation

Intangible as

15 recognised on a straght-hine basis over thar esimated useful bves. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted For on a pro ispective basis.

‘The estimated uscful life of the mtangble assets and the amostisation periad are reviewed at the end of cach financial year and the amortisaion period is revised to

reflect the changed pattern, of any.

An mrangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future ceonomic benefits are expected from use o disposal. Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured at the différence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrymg amount of the assct, and are recogmised m profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be mmpaired. IF any such ndication exists, the Company estimates

the reeoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount 1s the hugher of an asset’s net selling prce and s value m use. 1 such recoverable amount of the asset or

the recoverable amount of the eash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced toits recoverable

amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment Toss and 15 recognised m the Statement of Profit and Loss. 16 at the Balance Sheet date there 1s an mndicaton that if

previously assessed imparment loss no longer exists. the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.

Borrowing Costs:
Borrowing custs dircetly atrfibutable o the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifymg asset are capitahzed durmg the penod of ume that s necessaly o

complete and prepare the asset for us miended use or sale. A qualifying asset 15 one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for sts intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged o the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics and Contingent Assets;

Provisions are recognised only when therd is a present obligation as a result of past events and when a reliable estimate of the amount of ubligaton can be made.
Contingent habiliy 1s disclosed for (1) Possible obhigations which will be confirmed only by Future events not whally within the control of the Company or (2) Present
obligations arising [rom past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required o scttle the obligation or a reliable esumare of the amount of

the ebligation cannot be made. Contingenr Assets are not recognised m the fnancial statements since this may resultan the recogmition of mcome that may acver be

reabsed.




Juventus Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
n) Financial instruments

A fmancnl instrument is any contract that gives nise to a finaneial asset of one entity and a financial liability or cquity instrument of another.
1. Financial asscts

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized mitially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acqusition or issue of the financial asser.

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A “debt mstrument” s measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

(2) The assct is held within a business model whose objeetive is to hold asscts for eollecting contractual cash Aows, and

(b) Conteactual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that arc solely payments of prineipal and mterest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding,

After mitial measurement, such financial assets are subsequenty measured at amortized cost using the effective nterest rate (‘EIRY) method. Amortized cost is
caleulated by taking mto account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an ntegral part of the EIR. The LIR amortization is included in

finance meome m the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized m the profit or loss. This category generally applies o trade and other

Debt instrument at FVTOCI (Fair Value through OCI)

A fdebtinstrument” s classified as ar the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:

(2) The objective of the business maodel 1s achieved both by colleeting contractual cash flows and selling the financial asscts, and
(D) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPIL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCH eategory are measured initially as well as at cach reportng date at fur value,
Fair value movements are recognized in the OCL LHowever, the Company recognizes interest income, mmparrment losses & reversals and fi weign exchange gan or loss

in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the a
carned whilst holdig FVTOCT debrmstrument is reported as mierest mcome using the EIR method.

ct, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCH s reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest

Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss)

IVTPL 15 a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt strument, which does not meet the critera for categonzation as at amortized cost or as FVTOCL 18
classified ag at [FVIPL.

In additon, the Company may clect to classify a debt mstrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCT ertena, as at FVTPL. Howey er, such election 1s
allowed only 1f domng so reduces or climinates @ measurement or recogmtion meonsisteney (referred to as ‘aces unting mismatch’). Debt mstruments meluded withim
the FVTPL category are measured at farr value with all changes recogmzed m the profit and loss.

Equity Investments
All equity investments in entitics other tha
at FVITL. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same ather as at FVTOCT or FVIPLL The Company makes such clection on an

tax free bonds and fixed depostts are measured ar fair value, Lquity instruments which are held for trading are classified as

mstrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrey ocable.

1E the Company decides to classify an equity insrument as at FVTOCT, then all fair value changes on the mstrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL
There is no reeycling of the amounts from OCT o P&, even on sale of investment. Towever, the Company may transfer the cumulatve gain or loss within cquity.

Equiry mstruments mcluded withm the PVTPL category are measured at farr value wath all changes recogmred in the profit and loss. Invesmments in tax free bonds

and fixed deposits are measured at amortised cost.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial assct or part of a Company of sialar financial assces) s primarily derecognized (Le. removed from the

Company’s balance sheet) when:
* The nghts to recenve cash flows from the asset have expired, ot
ssumed an obligation to pay the recerved cash flows n Bl without material delay

¢ The Company has transferred ats nghts to receve cash flows from the asset or has
) the Company has transferred substantally all the nisks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company

to i third parry under a ’pnw-rhr: mgh’ arrangement; and either

¢d nor retamed substantally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asser.

has neither transfers

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS W, the Company apphes expeeted eredit loss (10CL) model for meéasurement and recs sgtion of im]‘\alrmcﬂl loss om the following

financial assets and credit nisk exposure:
1) inancial assets that are debeinstruments, and are measured at amortized cost e, Ioans, debt sceunties, deposits, trade recervables and bank balance.

b) ‘T'radc reeavables under Ind AS 18.




Juventus Estate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

1L

0)

p)

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and nisk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
nisk since snital recognition. TF eredit dsk has not increased significantly, 12-month BCTL is used to provade for impairment loss, However, if eredit risk has inercased
significantly, lifetime FCL s used.

If, in a subsequent period, eredit quality of the mstrument improves such that there 1s no longer a significant increase in credit risk since natial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowanee based on 12-month 1201

Financial lLiabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

I'maneal habilitics are classified, at imtal recognition, as financial Labilitics ar fair value through profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or as denvatives designated as
hedging instruments m an effectve hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized mitially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of
directly atrbutable transaction costs. The Company’s financial labihitics include trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of finaneial liabihues depends on their classification, as desenibed below:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Aftter mitial mensurement, such financial labilities are subscquently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derccognized as well as through the HIR amortization process Amortized cost is caleulated by taking mto account any discount or premmum on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an antegral part of the FIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the profit og loss. This category generally applies
to trade payables and other contractual liabilitics.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabihies at fair value through profit or loss nclude financial liabilities held for trading and financial Tabilities designated upon inital recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial labilites arc classificd as held for trading 1f they are meurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes denvative financial mstruments entéred into by the Company that are not desyenated as hedgng mstruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109,

Gains or losses on habilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or Toss.
Fmancial habilines designated upon mitial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designared ar the initial date of recogrinon, and only if the criteria n Ind

AS 109 are sausfied. For habilities designated as FVIPL, fur value gains/losses attributable 1o changes in own credit risk are rece ignized i OCL These gains, losses
are not subscquently transferred to profit and Toss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gan or loss within equity. All other changes m fair value of

such habihity are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any finaneial liability as at far value through profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financal habality ss derecagnized when the obliganon under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial bty 15 replaced by

another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing hability are substantrally modified, such an exchange or modification 15
teeated as the derecogninon of the orginal habihity and the recognition of a new liabsliry. The differcnce in the fespective carrving amounts is recognized in the

statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and habilities are offset and the net amount is reported m the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the reeogised amounts
and there s an mtention to scttle on-a net basis or realise the asset and settle the habilin smultancously.

The Tegally enforecable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal cousse of business and in the event of default, msolvency
or bankruprey of the Company or the counterparty.

Recent accounting pronouncements

The Mimstry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Co impanies (Indsan Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time o tme. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Compames (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from Aped 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose ther material accounting policies rather than their symificant accounung policies. Accounting policy nformation,

together with other mformaton, 1s matersal when 1t can reasonably be expected to mfluence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The
Company does not expeet this amendment ro have any sigaificant impact in its fnancial statcments.

Ind AS 12 - Tncome Taxces

The amendments elarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissiomng obligations. The amendments narrowed the
scope of the recognition exemption . paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind A8 12 {recogmtion exemption) so that it no longer applics to transactions that, on initial
recognition, give fise to cqual taxable and deduetible temporary differences. The Co mpany 1s evaluatng the wmpact, oif any, m its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help eatities to distmguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been
replaced with a definition of accountng estimates. Under the new definition, accounnng estmates are “monctary amounts in financial statements that are subjeet to
measurement uneertamty”. Lintities develup accounting estimates +f accounting policies require stems in financial statements 1o be measured inoa way that involves
measurement uncertanty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any sigmificant smpact in s financial statements.
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6 Property, plant and equipment

Tangible Assets All amount in & lakhs, unless otherwise stated
Details of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and reconciliation of their carryving amounts from beginning to end of reporting period is as follows:

Plant and machinery  Office equipment Computers Furniture and fixtures Vehicles Total
Gross carrying amount
Opening balance as at 01 April 2021 11.51 26.98 18.19 +4.02 97.01 197.71
Additions - 0.19 1.20 - = 1.39
Disposals/assets written off - 0.14 - 15.77 . 15,91
Balance as at 31 March 2022 11.51 27.03 19.39 28.25 97.01 183.19
\dditions - y - = s 5
Disposals/asscts written off 11.51 27.03 18.18 28.25 35.17 120.14
Balance as at 31 March 2023 - - 1.21 - 61.84 63.05
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance as at 01 April 2021 4.87 23.02 17.25 22.30 47.08 114.50
Charge for the year 0.77 2.67 0.97 +4.40 1212 20.93
\djustments for disposals = 0.13 e 9.61 - 9.74
Balance as at 31 March 2022 5.64 25.56 18.20 17.09 59.20 125.69
Charge for the year 0.58 0.69 0.63 212 10.58 14.60
\djustments for disposals 6.21 26.25 18.78 19.21 3231 102.76
Balance as at 31 March 2023 - - 0.05 - 37.47 37.52
Net carrying value as at 01 April 2021 6.64 3.96 0.96 21.72 49.93 83.21
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2022 5.87 1.47 1.19 11.16 37.81 57.50

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2023 - - 1.16 - 24.37 25.53




JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
All amount in & lakhs, unless otherwise stated

7 Intangible assets
Details of the Company’s Intangible assets and reconciliation of their carrying amounts from beginning to end of reporting period is as follows:

Softwares Total
Gross carrying amount
Opening balance as at 01 April 2021 20.75 20.75
\dditions -
Disposals/assets written off g s
Balance as at 31 March 2022 20.75 20.75
Additions = R
Disposals /assets written off (20.75) (20.75)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 N "
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance as at 01 April 2021 11.94 11.94
Amortisation charge for the year 4.58 4.58
Impairment charge - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 16.52 16.52
Charge for the year 3.38 3.38
Impairment charge (19.90) (19.90)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 s "
Net carrying value as at 01 April 2021 8.81 8.81
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2022 4.23 4.23

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2023 - 4
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Note- 8

III\‘ESIH’I?H‘,S = non-current

Investment in equity shares*

Unguoted

Subsidsary

Midkyway Buildeon Lamated

SU,00 (31 March 2021: 500000) equity shares of face value of Z 1)
cach tully pud up

\geregare book value of unquoted investments

Ageregate amount of imparment i the value of smvestments

As at

31 March 2023

284000
28.00

2800

Investment m equiny mstruments of subsidian are stated at cost as per Ind AS 27 ‘Separate Fianenl Statement’.

Note- 9
A Other financial assets - non-current
Bank deposits with matunty of more than 12 months (sefer nare 1 7
(Unsecured, considered good)
Secunity deposits”

* The company has provided secunty deposits (o Haryana State Pollution Control Board and the same s refundable a

B Other financial assets - Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits
Loan to Limpooy ee

Note - 10
Non-current tax assets, net
Advance meome tax, mcluding tax deducted ar source

Note - 11
A Other non-current assets
Prepad expenses

B Other current assets
Advance w siaft
\dvance o maremal |/ service providers
Prepasd expenses

Balances with statutory anthonites

Total of other current assets

Note - 12

Inventories
Real estate projeet under development (at cost)
Fand
License and other regulatony fees

Cost of matenals, construction cost and other overheads®

Less: Provision tor Impaircment

Less: costof revenue recognzed ull date

Construction matenalsm stock at lower of cost ar net realizable valugi

Total of inventories

Borrowing costof 2 53154 lakh 1 31 March 2022 Nali has been myentonsed dunng the year.

109,89

11.50

121.39

040
o

2.2
11.18

15,52

105.82

705
7.05

joe2

L1

6.13

437188
21.052.67
18,6016
63,93,
21,920:97
10, 48K.34
22,523.90

22,523.90

All amount in & Iakhs, unless othervwidse stated
As at
31 March 2022
D D

2800
28.00

28.00

gainst wrmmanon of transaction with them.

640

|

70139

570.39

24,278.08
2006306

19 458,34
43,181.54
525:21

325
43,706.75
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Note -13

Trade receivables®

As at

Al amount in & Iakhs, unless otherwise stated
As at
31 March 2022

Unsecured, consdered good 210
210
* The Company does not have any recervables which are either eredit mpaiced or where there 1s sigmificant increase in eredat misk.
As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Less than 6 months | 6 months to 1 year 1-2years 2- 3 years More than 3 years Toral
11 Undisputed trade recenables - consdered - -
sood
(w Undisputed trade receivables - considered
doubttul (Having sigmbicant increase m nsk
fm) Undisputed reade recervables - eredit
impaired
() Dispured trade recenables - considered = =
good
(vi Disputed trade recenables - considered
doubrful (Having symificant increase in risk)
(v Dhsputed reade recenables - eredut - z &
impaired
As a1 31 March 2022
Particulars Less than 6 months [ 6 months to 1 year 1-2ycars 2- 3 vears More than 3 years Total
(11 Undispurted teade recenables - considered 210 2.10
pood
() Undisputed trade recervables - considered -
doubtful (Having signsficant increase m risk)
(n Undisputed teade recenvables - credie
mpaired
(1v) Dasputed trade recevables  considered
pood
(v1 Disputed trade recenvables - considered
doubttul (1Taving significant merease i rsk;
(v Disputed trade recewables - eredie 3 =
impaired
Note - 14
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
la current accounts 14 18,68
81.14 18.68
Note - 15
Other bank balances
Bank deposis’
With matunny of more than three months and upto twelve months 73710 1.230.21
With maturity of moce than twelve months 100,89 33
81699 1.285,99
Lesst Non-cureent bank balances i fived deposit acconmnis 11959 33.78
73700 1:230.21
Interest Aecrued on bank deposits 5.81 5.000
742.91 1,235.21

Tised depasits wath banks of & 815,00 lakhs (excluding acerued wteresti, (31 Mareh 2

022 F 1,261.99 lakhs) are pledged for guarantees provided by the bank an favour of Lhe Director, Town and

Conutry Phnnmg, Hargana, further fixed deposit of ¥ 100 (excluding accrued mtesest, (31 March 2022 % 1ok had been pledged tor Var Regrsteation.
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it

vi

viii

Note - 16
Loans
(unsecured, considered good)

As at
31 March 2023

Inter-corporate loans o related parties 208.30
208.30
Note - 17A
Equiry share capital
Authorised Number Amount
Fiquity share caputal of face value of ¥ 10 cach 10,00,y T
10,00,000 100.00
Issued, subseribed and fully paid up
Lguity share caparal of face value of 3 10 cach fully pad up U839 Y80
98,039 9.80

Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity shares
Balance at the begnming of the year

Add: Tssued during the year

U8.039

QR0

Balance at the end of the year

98,039

9.80

Rights, preferences and restrictions anached to equity shares

A The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of 2 10 per sha

proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, 1 subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the énsig Annual General Mecnng.

All amount in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated

31 March 2022

208.30

208.30

Number Amount
10,00,000 100,00
10,00,000 100.00
98,030 .80
98,039 9.80
98139 080
98,039 9.80

Each holder of fully pad up equity share 15 entitled to one vote per share. The final dwadend

In the event of hqudanon of the Company, the holders of equity shareswill be entirled to secenve remarming assets of the € ampany, atter distrbution of all preferennal amounts. The dismbunon

will be m proporton o the aumber of cquity shares held by the sharch

OR03% cquity shaces of the Company 15 held by holdng company namely han Services Lontted and its nominees and previous yeard

company namely Indabulls Real Lstate Limited and s nominees.

Details of sharehalder holding more than 5 share capital
Name of the equity shareholder

olders,

Number of shares

98,039 cquity shares of the Company 1s held by holding

Number of shares

Dham Services Limited (mcluding nominee shares)

lnduabulls Real Pstate Timted aneluding nonumee <hares

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Disclnsure of sharcholding of promaoters as ar 31 March 2023 15 ax follo

o

OR130

Promoter Name

Share Held by Promoters

As at 31 March 2023

Number of shares

"o Total of Shares

"« Change during
the year

Dham Services Lamited (mcluding nommnee <hares)

084130

HOLO0" o

Loo.nn®,

Disclosure ot sharcholdmg of promoters as at 31 Mareh 2022 15 as folle

S

Promoter Name

Share Held by Promot

ers

As at 31 March 2022

Number of shares

*u Total of Shares

*» Change during
the year

GR.034

Indiabulls Real Estate Limited (meluding nommee shares:

TO0LNY

Company docs not have any shares sssued for conswleranon other than cash dunng the immedarely preceding fnve

years,

GR039

years, Lampany did not buy back any <hares durmg immediately precedimg five
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Alf amvount in & [akhs, unless otherwise srated

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
B Optionally convertible debentures ('OCDY) Number Amount Number Amount
DOBOT Opronally convernble debentures of face valie af * L
cach fully pawd up 10,96.893 11,968,493 10,96,893 10,968.93
10,96,893 10,968.93 10,96,893 10,968.93

Pursuant to the agreement entered o with earstw lnle holding Company Indiabulls Real Iistate Limted, during the financial vear ended 31 March 2009 the Company had wssued 370,143
Optionally converuble debentures of face value of 21000 cach bearmy snterest rate of 1L0001%0 per annum, o the holding Company, which are convernble it equivalent number of equity
shares or tedeemable at 1,000 on or before 2 years from the date of ssue. Dunng the imancial year ended 31 March 2014, the carstwhile huldm_u(,nmpnny had entéred o an agreement dated
16 August 2013 with FIMC Holdngs Linuted. pursuant 1o w'hich holding Company had purchased 726,750 debentures of 1000 cach beanmg anterest rre of 0.OUO1Y per annum, of the
Company fram FIMEC Holdmgs Limited, Further vide board resolinon dated 28 Mareh 2014 these debentures were converted fram compulsonly convernble debentures to apuonally convernble
debentuces and are convernble into equity shares ot T 10 each or redeemable at L0 on ot before the expiry of the tem. These opuonally convestible debentures are redeemable at die option

of the holder atany time over the matunty period of 20 years.

Lilective from Jaswary 31, 2020, the terms of the OCD have been ehanged. s per the revased terms, OCD are Convernible or redeemable at the option of wssuer, on or before the expiry of the
term fre November 30, 20240 . OCD are convertible w the rano of nmne cquity share for cach OCD. OCD were held by the carstw hule Holdmg Company namely lndiabulls Real Tstate Limted
and its nommees tll December 22, 2022, Wath effect from December

2022 the Company 1s taken over by Dhant Services Linuted and OCID have been taken o same terms and condinons.

C Compulsory convertible debentures

Number Amoung Number Amount
Compulsonly convertible debentures of face
value of ¥ 1000 cach 1100000 T1000:00 S -
11,00,000 11,000.00 - -

Compulsonh convertble debentures of face value of 3 1000 cach fully paid up. These CCDs are held by holding company namely Dhant Services imited and it nomumees.

s CCDs are
convernble mto number of equity shares determined by divading appregate prncpal amaunt of debentures by a conversion price of F 1,000,

D Compulsary convertible preference shares ('ccesy

i _Authorised Number Amount Number Amount

Compulsonly convertible preference shares of
face value of & 1000 cach 300,001} 3600000 300000 600,00
3,60,000 3,600.00 3,60,000 3,600.00

ii  Issued, subsecribed and fully paid up

Y 3.55.627 1hh627 3.55.627 355627

Compulsonly converuble Preference shares

of face value of T 1000 cach fully pasd up
3,55,627 3,556.27 3,55,627 3,556.27

iii Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Preference shares

Balasnice at the begnning of the year 3.55.627 3,55627 3.55.627

A d during the year o - = g
Less: Redemeed during the year = - = 2
Balance at the end of the year 3,55,627 3,556.27 3,55,627 3,556.27

iv Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares
00001 Compulsonly convertible prefetence shares of faee value of 1000 cach fully pard up. These CCPS were held by carstwhile holding company namely Induabulls Real I'seate Tinuted and
s nonunees. These CEPS are comvertible mto number of equity shares deteronned by dwadhng aggregate prancipal amount of preterence share capital by a conyeesion price of ¥ Lo00. The
Compulsonly convertble preference share are teansfeered to Dhani Services Limited with <ame terme and conditions w ..f 22nd December 2022,

v Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

At 31 March 2023 15 a3 follows

Promoter Name Share Held by Promoters

As at 31 March 2023
Number of shares | *o Total of Shares [*» Change during
the year

Disclosure of sharcholding of promoters 1

Dhan Services Limited aneluding nommee <hares: 3.55,627 10000 o 10000y

Disclosure of sharcholding of promoters as at 31 March 2027 15 as follows :
Promoter Name Share Held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2022
Number of shares [ *o Total of Shares [*o Change during

the year

Indiabulls Real state Linuted tincluding nommec shares) 355,007 T,
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All amount in & lakchs, unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Vi 355627 compulsory convertble preference share of T 1000 cach tully pasd feom Tnchabulls Real Estate Linuted. Pursuant to which Dham Services Limited holds 1007 of ssued share caprtal of

the company 353,627 (31 March 2022 355,627 hald by Indmbulls Real Estate Limited) preforence shares of the Company is held by holdmg company namely Dham Services Tinted and st

nommees. As on 31 March 2019, The campany had outstanding 355,627 (0.0001%) compuliorily convertible preference shares which will be converuble min cquity shares determmed by dividing

aggregate prmeipal amount of preference shares by conversion price of & 1000, The teem further extended ull 23 March 2028 via board resolution dated 18 € Jetober 2015,

vii  Company does not have any shares 1ssucd tar consideration other than cash duning the immediately preceding five years, Company did nor buy back any shares dunng: smmedately precedimg five
vears,

Note - 18

Other Equity

() Retamed larnings (26,917.75)

(i) Other component of cquity 34

(] Deferred employee compensaton resenve 6.79 679

Total

Nature and purpose of the reserve
(i) Retained Earnings

(26,838.62)

(26,838.62)

(5,165.10)

i Retained earnings
Balance as at the begnning of the year (4,872.3T)
Add: Profit / (lossi for the year (21,673:52) (384,39,
Re-measurement lozses on defined benefit
plans (net of @y, (154
Add: Transterred from other component of equiry = 14006
Balance available for appropriation (26,917.75) (5,244.23)
Less: Appropriatans -
Total of retained earnings 26,917.75 {5,244.23)
it Other component of equity
Balance at the beginning and cad of the year 7234 7234
Add: Addition dunng the year -
Total of vther component of equity 72,34 72.3%
iii Deferred Employee Compensation reserve
Balance at the begmming and end of the year 6.79 20.85
Add: Addinon dunng the year =
Transfer to retamed carmings on vesting of ophons (14416
Total of other component of equity 6.79 6.79

(5,165.10)

Retaned earnmgs are the accumulated prafits earned by the Company nll date and Actuarial gans and losses on defined benefir plans are recogmised i other comprehensive mcome (net of axes)
- less transfer o genenal reserves, and other distnbunons made to the <hareholders,

(ii) Other component of equity

Clther eomponent ot equity are upon exercise of stoch options by employees durmg the year.

) Deferred employee compensation reserve

The reserve s used o recognised the grant date fair value of the option 1ssue 10 employee under € ompany's stock ophon pln
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All amount in & Iakhs, unless otherwise stated

As at
31 March 2023

Note - 19A

Provigions - non-current

Provision for emplovee benefits: it pore 40
G ranty
Compensated absences

Note - 19B

Provisions - current

Provision for employee benehits: ot mate 4 5)
Gratwn
Compensated absences

Note - 20
Borrewings -current

Unsecured loans

As ar

31 March 2022

29.78
EXN|

33.79

.57
(LOR
0.65

Loans and advances teom related parties 24,209.94 32,320.45
24,209.94 32,320.45
This mtercorporate loan s taken from holding Company and repayable on demand.
Note - 21
Trade payables - current
lotal vutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises: and - 0.24
Due to related parties =
Toml ewstanding ducs of ereditors other than miceo enterprrses and small enterprises 15.97 1,759.53
Reteation Money
15.97 1,759.77
Trade Pavables ageing as at 31 March 2023
Hsctionlize Quitstanding for the year ended 31 March 2023
Not Due Less than 1 year 1 year to 2 year 2ycar to 3year | More than 3 years Total
(11 MSMIL - -
Orther than MSMI 1597 15.97
(i Dispured dues - \ISME - -
() Dispuied dues - Other than MSME 3 =
Trade Payables ageing as at 31 March 2022
Priciciibars OQuustanding for the year ended 31 March 2022
Not Due Less than 1 year 1 year to 2 year 2year 1o 3year | More than 3 years Total
(1 SN - 024 0.24
(1) Orther than MSMLL 26.78 1,731.51 140 54 0.21 1,759.53
() Disputed dues - MSME - =
(v Dasputed dues - Ontlier than NS\ -
* Diselosure under the Miceo. Small and Medum Enterprises Development Aer, 2006 CMSMID Act, 20067 as at 31 Mareh 2023 and 31 Marel 2002:
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
| The pruncipal amount remaming unpaid 1o any suppler as at the end of each accounting year; Nil .24
i) | And the mterest due thereon ~Nal Nil
w) | The amount of mterest pud by the buyer m rerms of secton 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to Nal il
the supplier bevond the appemted day dusing each accounting year:
1v) | The amount of mterest due and payable for the period of delay m makng payment (which have been pad but Nl Nl
beyond the appomnted day during the year: but withour adding the interest specified under this Acr;
v [ Ihe amount of micrestacerued and remamming unpad at the end of each accounting ycar: and il Nil
Vi) | The amount ot further micrest emamng due and payable even in the succeeding years, unul such date when thel Nl Nl
mterest dues as above are actually pad to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under secnon 23,

The above mformanon regardmg Micro, Small and Medwm I nterprises has been determmed 1o the extent such parties have been identificd on the basis of mtormaton avaslable wih the Company.




JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amount in & Jakhs, unless oternise scated

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Note -22
Other financial liabilities - current
lixpenses payable 4151 864008

41.51 86.08
Note - 23
Other current liabilities
Payable to statutory authorines 34.26
Advance from customers §43.29

897.55

(This space has been ntentonally lefe blank)




JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note - 24

Other income

Interest on fixed deposits

Sale of Scrap

Interest Income on Income Tax Refund
Balance Written Back

Note - 25
Cost of revenue
Cost incurred during the year

(Tnereasc)/decrease in real estate project under development

Opening stock
Provision for impairment

Closing stock

Note - 26

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Gratuity and leave encashment

Contribution to provident fund and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

Note - 27
Finance costs

Interest on optionally and compulsorily converrible debentures

Interest CXpPenses on taxation

Bank guarantee charges

Note - 28
Impairment on financial instruments

Provision for impairment of inventory

Note - 29

Other expenses

Advertisement expenses

Bank charges

Auditor's remuneration - as auditor (refer note (z) below)
Books and periodicals

Communication expenses

Carporate social responsibility expenscs (rfer wate (i) belam)
Insurance expenses

Legal and professional charges

Loss on sale/ written off of PPI

Printing and stationery

Rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenance-Others

Brokerage and marketing expenses

Subseription fees

Travelling and conveyance expenses

Old balance written off

Misecllaneous expenses

Customer incentive and other charges

All amount in F lakhs, unless otherwise stated

For the year ended
31 March 2023

51.07
20.14
45.88
484.10

For the year ended
31 March 2022

601.19

738,12

43.706.75
(21,920.97)
(22,523.90)

1,252.57
4245418

(43.706.75)

101.73
1.74
012
0.08

103.67

115.41
3.67
0.01
0.03

0.01

8.57

119.12

8.58

0.01
0.00
214

2.15

21,920.97

21,920.97

1.07
0.00
0.59
0.01

33.18
20.34
1.67
151.80
0.13
0.08
4.09
6.60
(.06
2.90

0.88
0.00
1.18
¢.02
0.02
3.16
0.43
50.34
6.18
0.57
45.56
0.67
27.43

1.00
0.26
208.94

222.52

346.64




JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amount in & lakhs, unless otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(i) Details of Auditor's remuneration
Auditor's remuneration
Audit fee 0.59 1.18
0.59 1.18

(ii) Corporate social responsibility expenses

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year is X Nil (previous year  3.16 Lakh). This amount is paid to trust.

Particulars In cash pSAE L R LT Total
cash

Construction /acquisition of any asset o Manahichs _ = 2

i 31 March 2022 5 = R
On purposes other than (i) above LM - - -

31 March 2022 3.16 - 3.16

(Figures i italics are in respect of previoss year)
Note - 30
Income tax
Tax expense comprises of:
Current income tax 0.99 -
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) - -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 0.99 -

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the Company at
25.168% and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate

Accounting Profit/ (loss) before tax (21,672.53) (384.39)
Accounting Profit/ (loss) before income tax (21,672.53) (384.39)
At India’s statutory income rax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Computed expeeted tax expense (5.454.54) (96.74)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed 5.384.88 0.80
Tax impact of unrecognised defersed tax on unabsorbed losses 61.79 90.93
Others 8.86 5.01
Income tax expense 0.99 =

The company has unabsorbed business losses (including unabsorbed depreciationjamounting to T 2,450.05 lakhs (31 March 2022: 3 2,204.52 lakhs) that are
available for offsetting for a maximum period of eight years from the incurrence of loss. The company has not created deferred tax assets on these unabsorbed
losses considering uncertainty involved in near future business income.




JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amount in & lakhs, unless otherwise stated
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Note - 31

Earnings per share (EPS)

The Company's Harnings per Share ("IEPS") is determined based on the net profit attributable to the sharcholders. Basic earnings per share is computed using the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted carnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and
dilutive common cquivalent shares outstanding during the ycar including share options | except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

"The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted TIPS computations:

Profit / (loss) artributable to equity holders :

Less: Dividend on preference shares

Profit / (loss) attributable to equity holders for basic earnings

Add: Preference dividend

Add: Interest on optionally and compulsorily convertible debentures

Profit / (loss) attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution

Weighted average number of Liguity shares for basic KPS

Liffect of dilution:

Optionally and Compulsorily Convertible Debentures

Convertible preference shares

Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution

Earnings per equity share

(21,673.52)
(0.00)

(21,673.52)
0.00
0.01

(384.39)
(0.00)

(384.39)
0.00
0.01

(21,673.51)

(384.38)

98,039

1,20,96,893.00
3.55,627.00

98,039

10,96,893.00
3,55,627.00

1,25,50,559.00

15,50,559.00

(1) Basic (%)
(2) Diluted (Z)*
* Due to anti-dilution DIPS to be same as BIPS.

(This space has been intentionally Teft blank)

(22,107.04)
(22,107.04)

(392.08)
(392.08)



JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note - 32
A)  Financial Instruments by category

All amount in & lakhs, unless otherwise stated

For amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents che best estimate of fair value,

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Amortised
(Seenote1 | (See note 2 cost (Secnote 1 | (See note 2 cost

below) below) below) below)
Financial assets
‘T'rade receivables - - - - - 210
Loans - - 208.30 - - 208.30
Cash and cash equivalents - - 81.14 . = 18.68
Other bank balances - E 742.91 - - 1,235.21
Other financial assets - - 22,68 = - 17.97
Total financial assets z = 1,055.03 - - 1,482.20
Notes
1. These financial assets are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss.
2. These financial assets represent investments in equity instruments designated as such upon initial recognition.
'Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary are stated at cost as per Ind AS 27 Separate Finaneial Statement’.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Amortised
cost cost

Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 24.209.94 & = 32,320.45
Trade payables - - 15.97 - - 1,759.78
Other financial liabilitics = - 41.51 - = 86.08
Total financial liabilities - - 24,267.42 - - 34,175.31

B) Fair value measurements

(i) Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial Habilitics measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped 1nto three Levels

The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markees for financial instrumencs.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments

of observable market data rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates,

Level 3: If onc ot more of the significant inputs

(ii) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value — recurring fair value measurements

is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Tewel 3.

of a fair value hierarchy.

that arc not traded 1n an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use

31 March 2023

Notes Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Financial instruments atr FVTPL

Total financial assets

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value —r

ecurring fair value measurements

31 March 2022

Levell

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets
Financial instruments at FVTPL

Total financial assets




JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amounr in & lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Note - 33

)

Financial risk management

The Company’s activities exposc it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit sk, The company's board of directors has overall responsibility for
establishment and oversight of Company’s risk management framework. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how
the entity manages the risk and related impact in che financial statements.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk default on ies obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financials loss. Maximum exposure to credit risk primarily comes
from trade recevables. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is Timited as we generally invest in deposits with banks and financials insttutions with
high credit raring assigned by international and domestic eredit rating apencics.

Crodit 1isk managevient

"The finance function of the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on intesnal credit rating system. Internal credit rating is performed for cach
class of fnancial instruments with different characteristics. The lintty classifies its financial asscts into the following categories based on the
assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial asscts.

i Low credir risk

B: Moderate credit risk

C: IMigh credit risk
Assets under credit risk —
Credit rating Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

A Cash and Cash Lguivalents 81.14 18.68
A Other bank balances 742.91 1.285.97
A Loans 208.30 208.30
A T'rade receivables e 2.10
A Orther financial asscts 22.68 1797

The risk parameters are same for all financial assets for all period presented. The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an on-gomny basis throughout each reporting period. In general, definition of
default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-cconomic factors.

Credit risk exbosure
Provision for expected credit losses

The Company provides for expected eredit loss based on lifetime expected credit loss mechanism for loans, deposits and other investments |

Company does not have such financial asser which requires provision for expected eredit loss

Concentration of financial assets
The Company's principal business activitics are development of real estate projects and all other related activities. The Company's outstanding receivables

are for real estare project. Loans and other financial statements majorly represents inter-company loans and other advances.

Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses

The Company provides for 12 month expected credit losses for following financial assets —
ALY a




JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amouncin T lakhs, unless otherwise stated

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars

Estimated gross
carrying amount at default

Expected credit
losses

Carrying amount net of
impairment provision

Cash and cash equivalents 81.14 81.14
Other bank balances 74291 4291
Loans 208.30 208.30
Other financial asscts 22.68 22.68

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of
carrying amount at default losses impairment provision
Cash and cash equivalents 18.68 18.68
Other bank balances 1,236 21 1,235.21
Loans 208.30 208.30
Orther financial assets 1297 1797

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

the entire pavment. During the year presented, the Company made no write-offs of trade receivables,

March 2023,

Reconciliation of loss provision — trade receivables

The Company’s trade receivables does not have any expected eredit loss as registry of propertics sold is generally carried out once the Company receives

The company does have trade receivables as on 31

Reconciliation of loss allowance

Trade receivables

Loss allowance as on 01 April 2021

Impairment loss recognised/reversed dln‘ing the vear

Loss allowance on 31 March 2022

Impairment loss recognised/reversed during the vear

Loss allowance on 31 March 2023

(B) Liquidity risk

T'he company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is
outstanding bank borrowings. The company hel
to arrange funds by taking loans and borrowing from Ultimate Holding Company. Accordingly no liquidity sk is

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s
financial labilitics. The amounts disclosed in the tble are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Bal

balances as the impact of discounting is insignificant.

ieves thar the working capital is sufficient to meer its current requirements. Company also have

financial liabilities into relevant maturity proupings based on their contractual maturities

generated from operations. The company has no

an option

being perceived.

for all non-derivative

ances due within 12 months cqual their carrving

31 March 2023 Less than 1 |Between 1and 2| Between 2 Between 3 More than 4 Total
year years and 3 years | and 4 years years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 24,209.94 - - = 24,209.94
Trade Pavables 1597 - - - 15.97
Other Financial Liabilitics 41.51 - - - 41,51
Total 24,267.42 - - - 24,267.42
31 March 2022 Less than1 |Between 1and 2| Berween 2 Between 3 More than 4 Total
year years and 3 years | and 4 years years
Non-derivatives
Borrowimngs 32.320.45 - - 32,529.45
Trade Payables 1,759.78 = = - 1,759.78
Other Financial Liabilicdies 80.08 - - - 86.08
Total 34,175.31 - - - 34,175.31

(C) Market risk
Foreign éxchange risk

Company does not have any forcign curreney risks and therefure

Interest rate risk

Company docs not have any interest rate risks and therefore sensitiviey analysis

Price risk

Company does not have any price sk

sensitivity analysis has not been shown.




JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated
Note -34
Deails with respec to the Benami properties:
No proceedings have been imuated or pendmg aganse the entity under the Benami Transzactions (Prohibitions) Act. 1988 for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Note - 35
Undisclosed income
There 14 no such mcome which has not been disclosed 1 the baoks ofaceounts. No such meome 15 survendered or disclosed as mcome duning the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 10 the tax

assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961,

Note -36

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

Profit ar loss on transactions involving Crypto currency or Virtual Currency Nao transaction dunng the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022

Amount of currency held as ar the reporting date No ransacvon dunag the year ended 31 Mareh 2023 and 31
March 2022

Deposits or advances trom any person for the purpose of trading or mvestng in Crypto Cureency / vietual currency No transaction dusing the yeat ended 31 March 2023 and 31

March 2022

Note -37
Ratio Analysis
The following are analytical ratios for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

Particulars Numerator Denominaior 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 Variance
Current Rano Current Asscts Current [ abilites 0,94 1.24 24.31%
Debt Equity Rano” Total Debrs Sharcholder's Fquty (18. 343 (H38.23",
Debt Senvice Coverage Ratio * Earnings avarlable for debt services Dbt Service BNA NA NA

Return on Eguity (ROL) -+ Net Profit After Taxes Yverage Share holder's quity NA NA NA

Inventory Turnover Rauo ™" Net sales Average Inventory NA NA A

Trade Recenable Turnover Rano Revenue Average Trade Recevable NA NA NA

I'rade Payable Turnover Rauo § Purchase of sénuiees and other expenses Average Trade Pavable NA NA N

et Caprial Turnover Rauo ™ Revenue Working Capital NA NA NA

Net Profit Rano# Net profit Revenue MNA NA NA

Return of Capital Hmployed (ROCE) = Larnmg betore nterest taxes Capual Fmployed NA NA NA

Return on Inyvestment Income generated from Investment Time Wophted Average mvestment | 5y NA NA

This mamly due reduction i shaccholders equity and debt as well.
Rato can aint be ealenlated due to nepative earming available for debr service 1n cirent year.
“* Ratio can not be caleulated due to loss mearred m current vear
Rano can not be ealeulated due to no revenue from opertion i cureent year as well as m previous vear
3 Rano can not be ealeulated due ta no cost of revenue m current vearas well as m previous year
# Rano can notbe caleulated due to loss ineurred and also there s no revenue from OPCTANON 1 cureent year

Note -38
Wilful Defaulter:

Ao bank or financial msttution has declared the company as "Wltal defaulter” during the vear ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

Note -39
Details in respect of Utilization of Borrowed funds and securities premium:

band 31 March 2022 no funds have been or loaned of 1nvested (either from hortowed fund or trom secuniies premmm or any other sources or kind of fands) by the

cended 31 NMarch 20
Company or i any other person(s) or enbity (1es) mcluding foreign entities Mntermedianes”) with the understandung, whether recorded in writing or otheewise, that the micrmediary shall Tend orinyvest i
any pacty wdentdied by or on behalt of the Company (Ulnmate Bencficanes).

During the

Durmg the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 the Company has not recerved amy fund from any party(s) (Tunding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether directly or

mdiectly lend or wvestin any ather persons or entiies indentificd by or on behalf of the tunding par ("Ultimate Bencficanics™ o provide any guarantee, secunty or the ke on behalf of the Ulimate

Beneficiaries

Nare -40
Relationship with Struck off Companies;

N transaction has been made with the company steuck off under section 248 of The ¢ ompanics Act, 2015 or secton 360 of Companses Act. 1956 during the vear ended 31 March 2023 and 31 Macch
24129;

Note -41

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:

Allappheable cases where registeation of chagges or sanskacton 1 requred wath Regastrar of Companies have been done, No regstration or satistaction 1= pendmg for the vear ended 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022,




JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note -42

Compliance with numbir of layers of companies:

The company has comphed with the number of layers presetbed under clause (87) of seetion 2 of the Act read with Compames (Restricron on number of Layers) Rules, 2007 and no layers of companes
has been established beyand the hmit preseribed as per above said section / rules during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Note -43

Loan or advances granted 10 the promoters, dircctors and KMPs and the related parties:

Loan and advances granted to promoter, Iireetors, and KAMPs and the related parties:

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Percantage to the  |Percantage to the
total loan and total loan and

‘Amount of Loan and Advance in the  |Amount of Loan and Advance in  |advance in nature advance in natre of
| Type of Borrower nature of loan ouistanding the nature of loan outstanding of loan (“) loan (*u)

Related Parties 208,30 218,30 00y 1607

Total 208.30 208.30 100" 100

Fhese loans are geanted 1o related parties which are repayvable on demand

Note - 44
Capital management

The Company’s ebyectiv

s whea managmng capital ace 10:
Safeguard their abihty to contmue as a going concern, so that they can contmuc to provide returns for sharehiolders and henefits for other stakiholders, and
Mameam an opumal capital structure to teduce the eost of capstal.

In order to maintan or adjust the capital structure, the ( ompany may adjust the amount of divadends pad 10 sharcholders, rcum caputal to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets o reduce debt.
Consistent with athers m the mdustey, the Company monitors caputal on the basis of the tollowng geanny ratio,

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Net debt - 300820
Toral equity 9,369.90

Net debt to equity rato# NA 331

Nerdebt includes Long Term Borrowings + Shoet Term Boerowmgs + current matunty of Long tem borrowings net off cash and cash equivalents (ncluding DR and other hgud secunies).

# Total cquity 15 negative hence debt equity ratio could not be caleulated

Note - 45
Related party transactions

Relationship Name of the related parties

Related parties exercising control

Dhant derviees Lanuted (from 23 December 2022

Lnlding company
b 2 Indibulls Real Fstate Linited upto 22 December 2022

Other related parties

Mabon Properties Limited

Fellow subsidhary compames* o
) L Indiabulls Constructions Lumited (upro 22 December 2022

Wath whom transactions have been made during the year PrevIOus year.

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Inter-corporate borrowing taken /(repaid), net

Holding Company

Dham Services Limted (wee £, 23 Deeember 2022 2420044

Indiabulls Real Fseate Lunsted (00l 22 December

(23 16,071 72
20102

Inter-corporate borrowing taken /(repaid), net

Fellow subsidiary Companies
Indiabulls Constructions 1 smired (19.364.93) 166262

Inter- corporate loans given/(rcceived hack), net

Fellow subsidiary Companies:

Mabon Preperties Led. 110

Interest on Inter Corporate Deposit

Holding Company

Dhant Services Limited 531.54

Issue Compulsorily convertible Debentures

Holding Company

Dham Services Lamued (€01 (RN

Interest on Optionally and Compulsorily
convertible Debenturcs

Holding Company
Dham Serviees Dimired i =

Induabulls Real |state Linuted - 1141

Pxeluding of taxes
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note -45
Related party wansactions (continued)
(ii) Statement of balances outstanding:

Particulars

31-Mar-23

31-Mar-22

Inter-corporate borrowing taken*

Holding Company:

Indmbulls Beal Lstate Linnted

14,048.21

Dhant Services 1 anted

24,200.94

Inter-corporate borrowing taken*

Fellow subsidiary Companies:

- _Indabulls Construetions Tamited

17.381.24

Inter- corporate loans given

Fellow subsidiary Companies

- Mabon Properties Linted

201830

20850

Optionally convertible debentures

Holding Company

Dham Services Limited

1LO968.93

Induabulls Real I'state Limsted

10,908.93

Compulsorily convertible debentures

Holding Company

Dhan Services Linured

TLOMN

Inierest payable on Compulsorily/ Optionally
convertible debentures

Holding Company

Dham Services Lamited

i

|

on denand

Disclosures m respeet of transactons with identified related partics are mven only for such peniod

Note - 46
Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company has made 0112 Lakhs (31 March 2022 2001 1akhs) contssbution in respect of provident fund

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has the following Detined Benefir Plans:

e Giratuity (Unfunded;
® Compensated absences (Unfunded)
Risks associated with plan provisions

durmg wilich such relatrionships existed.

Discount rate nsk

Reduction m discount rate subsequent yaluations can merease the plan's liabiliy .

Mortahty sk

Actual death & hability cases proving lower or higher than assumed 1 the v aluaton

an impact the habihines,

Salary risk

Actual salary mercase will merease the Plan's habahty. Incecase m salary increase rate assumpnon n future valoatons will also

micrease the labiliy.

Withdrawal nisk

etwal withdeawals proving ngher or lower than assumed withdeawals and change of withdrawal sates at subsequent valuan

can stnpact Plan's habilhiy.

Compensated absences

The leave obligations cover the Compam's habuhty for «ck and camed leaves. The amount
unconditional night 1o deter settement for any of these obhgatons. However based
payment within the nexe 12 months, theretore based on the tidependent actuaril report, only a certam amount of Provision

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation:

af provision of Nal (31 March 2022
on past experience, the Company does not

T0L08 Jakhs) 15 presented as cureent, sinee the Company does not have an
xpect all cmployees o take the full amount of acerued leave or require
has been presented as current and remMmmIng 45 Aon current.

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

\ctuaral (gain) /loss on ansing from change 1n demographic assumprions

Aetuarial (gam)/loss on apsing from change m financial ASSUMpLons

(ISR

\cruarial (gan) /]

s on ansing from change i expenence assumpuons

(U N

Amount r¢cognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Parriculars

31-Mar-23

31-Mar-22

Service cost

.34

Net Interest cost

131

\ctuaral (pami loss for the vear

(19

Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 Masch 2022
[Prescnt value of defincd benetit obhgation at the o
begunimg of the year e
Present value of detined benefit obhpanon recened

for employees trosterred to the ( Gmparny

LUFTCTH service cost 034
Interest cost = 051
Actuanal (gami Joss, net (L%
Benefits pad 100

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the
end of the year

(urrent

Non Cuarrent
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note - 46
Employee benefits {(continued)

For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:

Particulars Compensated absences

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.18%
Salary esealaton rate - 5000

Mortahty table

Tndman Assured

Lives Mortahry

(2012-14

As the Company does nat have any plan assets. the movement of present value of defined bencfit obligaton and fair value of pln asscrs

These assumpoons were developed by manag

televant economic markets and that have ter

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation

has not been presented.

ntwith the assistance of mdependent actuaml apprasers. Discount factors are determned close o cach year-end by reference

Year 31-Mar-23| Year 3i-Mar-22
Apnl 2023 March 2024 B Aprl 2022 - NMarch 2023 008
Apnl 2024 - March 2025 Aprl 2023 - Aarch 2024 1L06
Apnl 2025 - March 2026 Apnl 2024 - March 2025 .06
Apnl 2026 - March 2027 April 2025 - March 2026 (L1
Apnl 2027 - March 2028 \pnl 2026 - March 2027 1406
April 2028 - March 2020 Apnl 2027 - March 2028 (.06
Aprl 2029 onwards - Apnl 2028 onwards ATl

Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences Tiability

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation 4.09
Impacr due to ncrease of L5017 (0,25)
Impact due to decrease of 1.50 9, 0.27
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation 404
Impact duc to increase of 1150 " 1.28
Impact due to decrease ol (150 (11261

Sensitnanes due to mortalty and withdrawal are not matenal & hence mpact of change not calculated.

Graturt
ine

1y PIOVILCS TOT ZE 107 CHIPIOY CEs 10 10 48 Per e

gratuty. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement  tesnmation 15 the employed's last deawn basie <a

of veses of comare Cleatmn nlan s 3 o foaded olan

Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized in other comprehensive income

AVINEUL O Uriiny, AL, 12

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Actuanal (pamn)/loss on ansing from change in demopraphie assumpuons E
Actuarial (gam)/ loss on ansing trom change i financil assumpLOns (348
Actuaral (gan/ loss on ansmg from change m expenience Assumphons 542
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Service cost 240
et Interest cost 1.75
Expense recognized in the stntement of profit and loss - 4.21
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Present value ot detined benefit oblygaton at the begmnmg of the year 25.63%

Present value of defined benetit obligation teceved for employees transterred (o the Company

furrent service cose
Interest cost
Actuarml (gan)/ loss, net

Benehits pand

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

- Current
Non-Current

For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:

Particulars Gratuiry

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
[hscount rate T A8
Salary escalanion rate - SAHI,

Mortakhty able

Indian \ssured
I rves \Morraliry

(2012 14

0 government bonds of

15 1o matuonty approxmmanng to the terms of the related oblyaton. Other assumptions ase based on management’s histoncal expenence.

TPIOYCES W I ATC T CONUIUOUS SCTVLE 16T 3 PETOUOF 3 FELS 41t CHEIDIe 10T
v per manth computed proportonatcly tor 15 days salary muluplicd for the



JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
Note -46
Employee benefits (Continued):-
As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obliganon and fair value of plan assets has nnt been presented.

These assumptions were deseloped by management with the assistance of independent actuanial apprasers, Discount factors are determined elose 1o cach vear-end by reference to government bonds of
relevant cconomie markets and that have terms (0 maturnty approximating 1o the terms of the rehted oblgation. Other assumptions are based on management’s histonieal expenience,

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation

Year 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Apnl 2023 - March 2024 - [Apnl 2022 - March 2023 .57
Apnl 2024 - March 2025 Apal 2023 - March 2024 144
Apnl 20, Mareh 2026 - Apal 2024 - March 2025 .44
Apral 2026 - March 2027 - Apail 2025 - March 2026 0.45
April 2027 - March 2028 - Apul 2026 - March 2027 044
April 2028 - March 2029 - Apnl 2027 - March 2028 0.+
Apnl 2029 onwards - [ Apnl 2028 onwards ZE5T

Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of abligation at the end of the year 3033
Impact due to merease of (.50 % = (1.83)
Impact due to deerease of 10,50 %, 1,98
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of oblgaton at the end of the year - 30.35
Impact due to snceease of 1500, 2.01
Impact due to decrease of (130, - (LS

Sensnvities di

to mortahty and wathdrawal are not marenal & hence impact of change not caleulared.

Provident Fund

I'he Hon'ble Supremie Court of India has passed a judgement dated 28 February 2019 and 1t was held that basic wages, for the purpose ot provident tund, to mclude allowances which are common for all

employees. However, there 18 uncertanty wath respect 1o the applicabibiy of the judgement and penod from whneh the same apphes. Currently, the Company has nor considercd any impact . these

financial statements,

Note -47
Code on Social Securirv, 2020:

Ihe Tndan Parliament has approved the Code on Socal Secunty, 2020 which would impact the conmbunons by the company wards Provadent Fund and Granney. The Minstey of Labour and
Employment had released deaft rules for the Code on Suenl Secunty. 2020 on November 13, 20200 and mated suggestons from stakeholders which are under considesation by the Mymstey. The
Company will ;ve appropriate impact w ats financl statements in the penod mowhich, the Code becomes

Company will assess the impact and 1ts evaluanon ence the subjeet rules are nonfied. Thy
cttectve and the related rules to deternune the financial impact are published.

Note -48
Contingent liabilities and commitments:

Contingent liabilities

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Guarantees provuded by the banks (secured by way of fixed deposats of the Company ) 845,24 #45.34
DY 7 Asst, Comm. (Good and service v, Mumbas for AY 2014 15 074
DY - Asst Comm. (Good and senviee ), Mumbar for AY 2016-17 & 2017 181 : 2214

The Company has cermain hingation cases pendmgs howeyer, bised on legal adveee, the management does not expecet any unfavouzable outcome resulting i materal adverse ctfeet on the finaneial position
of the Company.

Commitments

Particulars [ 31-Mar-23 [ 31-Mar-22 |
| Argears of preference diadends [ .03 I 13 |
There are no other eontingent labilites and commitments to be reported oa 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2
Note -49
Scgmental information

The Company's primary business sepment 15 reflected based on prncipal business actnnes carried on by the Company .o, purchase, sale, dealing, real estate project advizory, construction and
development ol ral estate projects and all other related actvaties which as per Ind AS 108 on Operatmg Scpments” s considered 0 be the only reporrable business sepment. The
major revenues trom consernetion and development of real estate projects and i< customers are widespread. The Company 1= operating m Tndia which s considered as a <

company deaves s

reographical segment.

Note - 50
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows

e changes in the Company’s labilities ansing trom financing actmvaties can be classsfied as follows:

Particulars Current borrowings Total

Net debt as at 01 April 2021 30666.83 30666.83
Proceeds from current horrow ings 278662 62
Repayment of eurrent borrowings (L1200 (L1240
Net debt as at 31 March 2022 32,329.45 32,329.45
Proceeds from current borrowmgs 37.317.14 27.317.14
Repayment ot current borrowings (33430.0% (33.430.65
Net debt as at 31 March 2023 24,200.94 24,209.94




JUVENTUS ESTATE LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Note - 51
Other matters

a.'The Company has not entered into any derivative instrument during the year. The Company does not have any foreign currency cxposures

towards receivables, payables or any other derivative instrument that have not beeg hedged.

b. In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues requited to be credited to the Tnvestor
Iiducation and Protection IFund as at 31 March 2023 and 31 Mach 2022,

¢ In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all current assets and long term loans & advances, appearing in the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023,
have a value on realization, in the ordinary course of the Company’s business, at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the financial
staternents. In the opinion of the board of directors, no provision is required to be made against the recoverability of these balances.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

005975N

¢ IV,

New Delhi
Praveen Keshav Prasant Kumar Dey Sandeep Muzumdar
Partner Director Whole Time Director
M. No.: 535106
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